

# **Veeva** Network

Veeva Network 18R1.0.1 Data Governance

April 2018

## Contents

Data governance	5
Process change for release and maintenance notifications	5
Adding new fields to your Veeva OpenData subscription	5
Enabling Veeva OpenData fields for extended use	5
Global data updates	6
All Countries	6
Andorra	6
Belgium	7
France	8
Ireland	9
Japan	10
Luxembourg	10
Monaco	11
Poland	11
Portugal	12
Spain	12
United Kingdom	13
United States	14
Global data inactivations	15
Brazil	15
Costa Rica	24
Dominican Republic	34
FI Salvador	12



	Guatemala	52
	Honduras	60
	Mexico	69
	Nicaragua	78
	Panama	87
Γ	Franslation updates	97
	Chinese - Simplified	97
	Dutch	97
	English - American	99
	English - British	101
	French	102
	German	102
	Portuguese	103
	Snanish	103



#### Data governance

The data governance document describes data changes introduced in this release as of the publication date of this document.

#### Process change for release and maintenance notifications

As of February 1, 2018, Veeva is no longer managing lists for release and maintenance notifications.

To receive these types of notifications, go to <u>trust.veeva.com</u> and subscribe to the Network product. At the top of the page, click **Subscribe to Veeva Trust Site**.

For more information, see <a href="https://support.veeva.com/hc/en-us/articles/115004142714-How-to-Opt-In-to-System-Availability-Notifications-">https://support.veeva.com/hc/en-us/articles/115004142714-How-to-Opt-In-to-System-Availability-Notifications-</a>.

If you have questions or require additional details, contact Veeva Support.

To receive notifications when Release Notes and Data Governance documents are published for each release, follow this page: <a href="https://support.veeva.com/hc/en-us/sections/203656118-Network-Release-notes">https://support.veeva.com/hc/en-us/sections/203656118-Network-Release-notes</a>.

#### Adding new fields to your Veeva OpenData subscription

When Veeva OpenData adds new fields to a country that you are subscribed to, you can add the field to the subscription so that it's ready to receive data and be mastered by Veeva OpenData.

For information about adding new Veeva OpenData fields to your subscription, see the topic called *Adding Veeva OpenData fields* in the *Veeva Network Online Help*: <a href="https://docs-vdm.veevanetwork.com/doc/vndocad/Content/Home.htm">https://docs-vdm.veevanetwork.com/doc/vndocad/Content/Home.htm</a>.

#### **Enabling Veeva OpenData fields for extended use**

Veeva OpenData fields can be enabled to load local or third party master data. A field can be Veevamastered in some countries, mastered by a third party source in other countries, or be owned by a customer in the remaining countries.

Administrators can view ownership of the data model fields, by country, in the Network user interface by navigating to **Data Model** > **Network Data Model**. For more information about enabling Veeva OpenData fields for local or third party data use source, see the topic called *Enabling data model fields* in the *Veeva Network Online Help*.



## **Global data updates**

The following sections describe reference data considerations and updates for applicable regions.

## **ALL COUNTRIES**

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
HCP, Addres, License	birth_statev, administrative_area_ _v, license_admin_area_ _v	AddressAdminArea	CN-HA	Henan Sheng	河南
			CN-HE	Hebei Sheng	河北
			CN-HI	Hainan Sheng	海南
			CN-HK	Xianggang Tebiexingzhengqu	香港
			CN-HL	Heilongjiang Sheng	黑龙江
			CN-SN	Shaanxi Sheng	陕西

#### **ANDORRA**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1_ _v to hco_focus_area_10 v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cáncer de hígado
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cáncer de páncreas
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	EXPATH	Experimental Pathology	Patología experimental
			LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cáncer de hígado



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cáncer de páncreas
			REGAFF	Regulatory Affairs	Regulatory Affairs
НСР	professional_title v	HCPProfessional Title	PSY	Psychologist	Psicólogo
			SLT	Speech and Language Therapist	Logopeda
HCP, Parent HCO	primary_relation_ typev, relationship_type v	RelationType	ADR	Attending Physician	Especialista

## **BELGIUM**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
HCO	hco_focus_area_1_ _v to hco_focus_area_10 v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСР	medical_degree_1_ _v to medical_degree_5_ _v	HCPMedical Degree	NEUROR	Neuroradiology Diploma	DIU de Neuroradiologie Diagnostique
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	ORTHOP	Orthoptics	Orthoptie

# **FRANCE**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1_ _v to hco_focus_area_10 v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	medical_degree_1_ _v to medical_degree_5_ _v	HCPMedical Degree	NEUROR	Neuroradiology Diploma	DIU de Neuroradiologie Diagnostique
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	ORTHOP	Orthoptics	Orthoptie



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
HCP, Parent HCO	primary_relation_ typev, relationship_type v	RelationType	GHTASS	THG Associate member	Membre Associé d'un GHT

## **IRELAND**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1_ _v to hco_focus_area_10 v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Liver Cancer
			OVAR	Ovarian Cancer	Ovarian Cancer
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Pancreatic Cancer
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Sickle Cell Disease
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	4:65	Purchaser	Group Purchasing Organisation (GPO)
			4_91	Organization, Single Private Practice	Private Medical Practice (Non NHS)
HCP	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Liver Cancer
			OVAR	Ovarian Cancer	Ovarian Cancer
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Pancreatic Cancer
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Sickle Cell Disease
			UVEI	Uveitis	Uveitis



# **JAPAN**

The following field has been added for the HCO entity:

• alternate\_name\_2\_\_v - Indicates the second alternate name for an HCO.

## LUXEMBOURG

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1_ _v to hco_focus_area_10 v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	medical_degree_1_ _v to medical_degree_5_ _v	HCPMedical Degree	NEUROR	Neuroradiology Diploma	DIU de Neuroradiologie Diagnostique
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	ORTHOP	Orthoptics	Orthoptie



## Monaco

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1 v to hco_focus_area_ 10v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1 v to hcp_focus_area_ 36v	HCPFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancer du foie
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancer du Pancréas
			SARC	Sarcoma	Sarcome
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Drépanocytose
НСР	medical_degree_1 v to medical_degree_5 v	HCPMedicalDegree	NEUROR	Neuroradiology Diploma	DIU de Neuroradiologie Diagnostique
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	ORTHOP	Orthoptics	Orthoptie

# **POLAND**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	THE	Operating Theater Nursing	Pielęgniarstwo chirurgiczne



## **PORTUGAL**

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1 v to hco_focus_area_ 10v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancro do fígado
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancro do pâncreas
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1 v to hcp_focus_area_ 36v	HCPFocusArea	EXPATH	Experimental Pathology	Patologia Experimental
			LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cancro do fígado
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cancro do pâncreas
			REGAFF	Regulatory Affairs	Assuntos Regulamentares
НСР	professional_title_ _v	HCPProfessional Title	PSY	Psychologist	Psicólogo
			SLT	Speech and Language Therapist	Terapeuta da fala

# **S**PAIN

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1 v to hco_focus_area_1 0v	HCOFocusArea	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cáncer de hígado
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cáncer de páncreas



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1 v to hcp_focus_area_3 6v	HCPFocusArea	EXPATH	Experimental Pathology	Patología experimental
			LIVER	Liver Cancer	Cáncer de hígado
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Cáncer de páncreas
			REGAFF	Regulatory Affairs	Regulatory Affairs
НСР	professional_title_ _v	HCPProfessional Title	PSY	Psychologist	Psicólogo
			SLT	Speech and Language Therapist	Logopeda

## **UNITED KINGDOM**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1v to hco_focus_area_10v	HCOFocus Area	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Liver Cancer
			OVAR	Ovarian Cancer	Ovarian Cancer
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Pancreatic Cancer
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Sickle Cell Disease
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	4_91	Organization, Single Private Practice	Private Medical Practice (Non NHS)
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1v to hcp_focus_area_36v	HCPFocus Area	LIVER	Liver Cancer	Liver Cancer
			OVAR	Ovarian Cancer	Ovarian Cancer
			PANC	Pancreatic Cancer	Pancreatic Cancer
			SCD	Sickle Cell Disease	Sickle Cell Disease
			UVEI	Uveitis	Uveitis



#### **UNITED STATES**

The following field has been added for the HCO entity:

• trauma\_center\_level\_\_v - Indicates the state-designated trauma center certification level.

The following fields have been added for the HCP entity:

- primary specialty group v Indicates the specialty group for HCPs.
- alternate\_first\_name\_\_v Indicates the alternate first name of the HCP.
- alternate middle name v Indicates the alternate middle name of the HCP.
- alternate\_last\_name\_\_v Indicates the alternate last name of the HCP.

The following fields have been added for the HCP object for the U.S. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS):

- cms physician profile v The ID assigned to an HCP by the CMS.
- cms\_associated\_research\_\_v Indicates funding for a research project or study where the HCP is a principal investigator.
- cms general payments v The total general payments and transactions for an HCP.
- cms\_ownership\_interest\_\_v Indicates the current dollar value of ownership interest or investment help by a physician or the physician's immediately family members.
- cms research payments v Indicates payments related to research for an HCP.

If one of the five CMS fields is enabled in your Network instance, the four other fields will also be enabled.

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description	Translation
License	dea_business_ activity_codev	LicenseDEACode	A9	Pharmacy, Federal	
			B5	Hospital/Clinic - VA	
			CE	Practitioner, Military - MLP NP-DW/30	
			CF	Practitioner, Military - MLP PA-DW/30	



#### **Global data inactivations**

The following sections list reference codes that have been inactivated by Veeva OpenData for the countries listed. Veeva OpenData does not use these codes in their data; you may choose to update local codes accordingly unless they are required by your own data.

#### **B**RAZIL

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of_ tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			СНР	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			НМР	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			ОСТ	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			ОТН	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			РО	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology

# COSTA RICA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
HCO	major_class_of _tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
НСР, НСО	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			HMP	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			ОТН	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			PO	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology



# DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of _tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			НМР	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			OTH	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			РО	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology



## EL SALVADOR

Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
hco_typev	HCOType	1_3	Children's Hospital
		1_7	Mental Health Hospital
		11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
		11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
		11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
		11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
		11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
		11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
		11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
		13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
		13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
		13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
		13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
		13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
		13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
		13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
		13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
		14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
		14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			hco_typev HCOType



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of_ tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
НСР, НСО	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology



HBS Hepatobiliary Surgery HIV HIV-AIDS Medicine HMP Hematology (Pathology) HO Hematology/Oncology HPHARM Hospital Pharmacy IC Interventional Cardiolog IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic IG Immunology	ıy
HMP Hematology (Pathology) HO Hematology/Oncology HPHARM Hospital Pharmacy IC Interventional Cardiolog IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic	ıy
HO Hematology/Oncology HPHARM Hospital Pharmacy IC Interventional Cardiolog IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic	ıy
HPHARM Hospital Pharmacy  IC Interventional Cardiolog  IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic	•
IC Interventional Cardiolog IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic	•
IEC Residents -IM/EM/Critic	•
· ·	
IG Immunology	al Care
LEGAL Medico Legal Consulting	
MDM Medical Management	
MT Massage Therapy	
NC Nuclear Cardiology	
NSP Pediatric Surgery (Neur	ology)
OAN Obstetric Anesthesiolog	1
OBS Obstetrics	
OCT Occupational Therapy	
OMF Oral & Maxillofacial Surg (Medicine)	jery
OSG Oral & Maxillofacial Surg (Dentistry)	jery
OTH Other	
PAN Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)	,
PCP Cytopathology	
PCS Pediatric Cardiothoracic	Surgery
PDA Pediatric Allergy	
PDC Pediatric Cardiology	
PDE Pediatric Endocrinology	
PDI Pediatric Infectious Dise	ase



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			РО	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology



## **G**UATEMALA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical- Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of _tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			НМР	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			OTH	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			РО	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology

## **HONDURAS**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical- Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of_ tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			HMP	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			OTH	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			PO	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSUR G	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology

## **M**EXICO

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical- Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
				Abuse Facilities



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_ of_tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
НСР, НСО	specialty_1v to specialty_10 v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			СНР	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			HMP	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			ОСТ	Occupational Therapy



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			ОТН	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			PO	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSURG	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology

# NICARAGUA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical- Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric



Object Fi	eld	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital- based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long- Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of _tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			НМР	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			ОТН	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			РО	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSUR G	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			V	Virology

### **P**ANAMA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_3	Children's Hospital
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:96	Pharmacy, Retail Sellers and Suppliers
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:1	Healthcare Manufacturer, General
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical- Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:1	Health Authority/Board
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			29:99	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Corporate Office
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_5	Area Team
			36_6	Clinical Commissioning Group
			36_7	Commissioning Region
			36_8	Commissioning Support Unit
			36_9	NHS Support Agency
			4:10	Organization, Lab
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:12	Education Establishment
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:37	Organization, Health System
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:6	Organization, Hospital
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:8	Organization, Nursing Home / Long Term Care
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			4:99	Organization, Corporate Office
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4_99	Treatment Center/Day Hospital
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office
НСО	major_class_of_ tradev	MajorClassofTrade	15	Residency Program
			2	Healthcare Provider
			28	Medical Board
			31	Professional public health agencies
			35	Rest of World
			7	Home Health Care Agencies



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	14	Cosmetology
			30	Laboratory Medicine
			9_5	Children Care_Children's Nutrition
			Α	Allergy
			AMD	Administrative Medicine
			ANDR	Andrology (Men's Health)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CGP	Consultant Physician
			CHP	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry
			CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
			CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
			DAN	Dental Anesthesiology
			DAP	Advanced Practice Dentistry
			DEC	Cosmetic & Aesthetic Dentistry
			DEE	Emergency Dentistry
			DIA	Diabetes
			DS	Dermatologic Surgery
			DU	Diagnostic Ultrasound
			DYS	Dialysis
			ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
			GYN	Gynecology
			HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
			HIV	HIV-AIDS Medicine
			НМР	Hematology (Pathology)
			НО	Hematology/Oncology



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			HPHARM	Hospital Pharmacy
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			IEC	Residents -IM/EM/Critical Care
			IG	Immunology
			LEGAL	Medico Legal Consulting
			MDM	Medical Management
			MT	Massage Therapy
			NC	Nuclear Cardiology
			NSP	Pediatric Surgery (Neurology)
			OAN	Obstetric Anesthesiology
			OBS	Obstetrics
			OCT	Occupational Therapy
			OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
			OSG	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Dentistry)
			ОТН	Other
			PAN	Pediatric Anesthesiology (Pediatrics)
			PCP	Cytopathology
			PCS	Pediatric Cardiothoracic Surgery
			PDA	Pediatric Allergy
			PDC	Pediatric Cardiology
			PDE	Pediatric Endocrinology
			PDI	Pediatric Infectious Disease
			PDP	Pediatric Pulmonology
			PEDGYN	Pediatric Gynecology
			PER	Periodontics
			PH	Public Health



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PHY	Physiatry
			PLM	Palliative Medicine
			PN	Pediatric Nephrology
			PO	Pediatric Ophthalmology
			POD	Podiatry
			POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
			PONC	Oncology Pharmacist
			PPR	Pediatric Rheumatology
			PSH	Plastic Surgery within the Head & Neck
			PTH	Anatomic/Clinical Pathology
			PYA	Psychoanalysis
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RES	Research Medicine
			RESPSUR G	Respiratory Surgery
			SEXH	Sexual Health
			SW	Social Work
			TROP	Tropical Medicine
			TRS	Trauma Surgery
			UP	Pediatric Urology
			US	Unspecified specialty
			V	Virology



# **Translation updates**

The following sections describe translation updates for applicable regions.

### CHINESE - SIMPLIFIED

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, Address, License	birth_statev, administrative_area v, license_admin_area v	AddressAdminArea	CN-HEB	河北省	河北省 (CN-HEB)
			CN-HEN	河南省	河南省 (CN-HEN)
			CN-HLJ	黑龙江省	黑龙江省 (CN-HLJ)
			CN-HN	海南省	湖南
			CN-HUN	湖南省	湖南省 (CN-HUN)
			CN-SAX	陕西省	陕西省 (CN-SAX)

#### **D**UTCH

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	RET	Retinale aandoeningen	Retinale chirurgie
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	Α	Allergie	Allergologie
			ADL	Adolescentengene eskunde (pediatrie)	Jeugdgezondheids zorg



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	<b>New Translation</b>
			CD	Cardiovasculaire aandoeningen	Cardiologie
			D	Dermatologie	Dermatologie en venerologie
			DMO	Dento-maxillaire orthopaedie	Dento-maxillaire orthopaedie (orthodontist)
			FM	Huisarts	Huisartsgeneeskun de
			GE	Gastro-enterologie	Maag-darm- leverziekten
			GER	Geriatrie/gerontol ogie	Klinische geriatrie
			GPP	Algemene praktijk met apotheek	Huisartsgeneeskun de met apotheek
			GS	Algemene chirurgie	Heelkunde
			HPHARM	Ziekenhuis en apotheek	Ziekenhuisfarmaci e
			IM	Inwendige geneeskunde	Interne geneeskunde
			IMG	Geriatrie (inwendige geneeskunde)	Specialisme ouderengeneeskun de
			ОМ	Beroepsgeneeskun de	Arbeid en gezond
				ue	bedrijfsgeneeskun de
			ORP	Orthodontie en dentofaciale orthopedie	Mondziekten en kaakchirurgie
			ORS	Orthopedische chirurgie	Orthopedie
			PD	Pediatrie	Kindergeneeskund e



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
			PM	Lichamelijke geneeskunde en revalidatie	Revalidatiegenees kunde
			PSN	Neuropsychologie	Klinische neuropsychologie
			PTH	Anatomische/klinis che pathologie	Pathologie
			PUD	Longziekten	Longziekten en tuberculose
			RCH	Gezondheid op het platteland (APN's)	Maatschappij en gezondheid
			TR	Therapeutische radiologie	Radiotherapie
			TS	Thoraxchirurgie	Cardio-thoracale chirurgie

### **ENGLISH - AMERICAN**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, Address, License	birth_statev, administrative_ areav, license_admin_ areav	AddressAdminArea	CN-AH	CN-AH	Anhui Sheng
			CN-BJ	CN-BJ	Beijing Shi
			CN-CQ	CN-CQ	Chongqing Shi
			CN-FJ	CN-FJ	Fujian Sheng
			CN-GD	CN-GD	Guangdong Sheng
			CN-GS	CN-GS	Gansu Sheng
			CN-GX	CN-GX	Guangxi Zhuangzu Zizhiqu
			CN-GZ	CN-GZ	Guizhou Sheng



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	<b>New Translation</b>
			CN-HB	CN-HB	Hubei Sheng
			CN-HEB	CN-HEB	Hebei Sheng (CN- HEB)
			CN-HEN	CN-HEN	Henan Sheng (CN- HEN)
			CN-HLJ	CN-HLJ	Heilongjiang Sheng (CN-HLJ)
			CN-HN	CN-HN	Hunan Sheng
			CN-HUN	CN-HUN	Hunan Sheng (CN- HUN)
			CN-JL	CN-JL	Jilin Sheng
			CN-JS	CN-JS	Jiangsu Sheng
			CN-JX	CN-JX	Jiangxi Sheng
			CN-LN	CN-LN	Liaoning Sheng
			CN-NM	CN-NM	Nei Mongol Zizhiqu
			CN-NX	CN-NX	Ningxia Huizi Zizhiqu
			CN-QH	CN-QH	Qinghai Sheng
			CN-SAX	CN-SAX	Shaanxi Sheng (CN-SAX)
			CN-SC	CN-SC	Sichuan Sheng
			CN-SD	CN-SD	Shandong Sheng
			CN-SH	CN-SH	Shanghai Shi
			CN-SX	CN-SX	Shanxi Sheng
			CN-TJ	CN-TJ	Tianjin Shi
			CN-XJ	CN-XJ	Xinjiang Uygur Zizhiqu
			CN-XZ	CN-XZ	Xizang Zizhiqu
			CN-YN	CN-YN	Yunnan Sheng
			CN-ZJ	CN-ZJ	Zhejiang Sheng



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, Parent HCO	primary_relation_ typev, relationship_type_ _v	RelationType	BUYER	Buyer	Buyer / Purchasing / Procurement Specialist
			HDPURC HA	Head of Purchasing	Head of Purchasing / Procurement
			PROCUD IR	Procurement Lead / Director	Purchasing / Procurement Manager or Lead
			SERDIR	Service Managers / Directors	Service Manager / Director

# **ENGLISH - BRITISH**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСО	hco_focus_area_1 v to hco_focus_area_10_ _v	HCOFocusArea	ECG	-	Electrocardiogram ECG / Cardiac Magnetic Resonance Imaging (Cardiac MRI)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	4:65	Purchaser	Group Purchasing Organisation (GPO)
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1 v to hcp_focus_area_36_ _v	HCPFocusArea	ECG	Electrocardiogram (ECG)	Electrocardiogram ECG / Cardiac Magnetic Resonance Imaging (Cardiac MRI)
HCP, Parent HCO	primary_relation_ typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	BUYER	Buyer	Buyer / Purchasing / Procurement Specialist



Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
			HDPURC HA	Head of Purchasing	Head of Purchasing / Procurement
			PROCUD IR	Procurement Lead / Director	Purchasing / Procurement Manager or Lead
			SERDIR	Service Managers / Directors	Service Manager / Director

### **FRENCH**

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1_ _v to hcp_focus_area_36 v	HCPFocusArea	RET	Chirurgie de la Rétine/Vitréo- Rétinienne	Chirurgie Vitréo- Rétinienne

#### **GERMAN**

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСР	professional_title_ _v	HCPProfessional Title	Р	Öffentlicher Apotheker (nicht verwenden)	Öffentlicher Apotheker
			PP	Öffentlicher Apotheker	Öffentlicher Apotheker (nicht verwenden)



### **PORTUGUESE**

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	30	Medicina de laboratório	Análises clínicas
			MHNU	Enfermagem de Saúde Mental e Psiquiatría	Enfermagem de Saúde Mental e Psiquiátrica
			SLP	Patologia da fala e da língua	Terapia da fala

# **S**PANISH

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	SLP	Patología del habla y del lenguaje	Logopedia